
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors. 
 
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process. 
 
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 
 
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 
 
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

 
DATE: Monday, 14 December 2020 
 
TIME:  11.00 am 
 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 THE PROCEEDINGS OF THIS METING CAN BE VIEWED LIVE ON 
THE DAY VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1
NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c
00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d 
 

 

1   Apologies for absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest  
 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  
 
No items 
 

 

3a Leasehold Reform Act 1967 - Review of Disposal Practices  
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

3b Community Asset Transfer Policy  
 

(Pages 7 - 22) 

3c Unicorn Public House, Barton - Asset of Community Value Application  
 

(Pages 23 - 28) 

4   Public Briefing/Information Items   

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDcyNWJjNDgtYzQyYS00YzQwLWJlMmYtYjc1NjJkMTljM2Ri%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


 

 
The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 
of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda 
 

4a Self-Build Residential Development Business Case (see item 6(a))  
 

(Pages 29 - 48) 

5   Exclusion of the Public  
 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  
 

 

6a Self-Build Residential Development Business Case  
 

(Pages 49 - 50) 

7   Any other business  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor 
Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public  

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE  

 

TO THE PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 

14th December 2020

 

TITLE: Review of Disposal Practices under the Leasehold 
Reform Act 1967 (LRA) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   
The City Mayor is recommended to; 
 
Approve the proposal to cap the professional fees payable by individual purchasers 
who wish to acquire the freehold interest in their properties from the City Council under 
the provisions of the Leasehold Reform Act 1967 to the sum of £250 on the basis set 
out in Option 2 (paragraph 4.4) of this report.   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
Members will be aware of the Government review that has been undertaken to tackle 
exploitative practices in the leasehold sector.  In anticipation of legislation to deal with 
such practices, the City Council has already adopted the Government’s 
recommendations and has implemented a policy for land disposals which restricts 
developers from creating subleases with onerous terms (including the reservation  of 
a ground rent) and ensuring the full residue of the term granted to the developer, less 
a nominal reversion, is passed onto the sub-tenant (individual homeowner). The 
Council has not gone so far as to implement freehold sales to developers in substitution  
of the current practice of long leasehold sales as this has the potential to undermine 
delivery of development arising from lack of effective contractual enforcement of 
development obligations, although this position may need to be re-considered when 
the new legislation comes into effect.   
 
Whilst future individual homeowners on residential development sites which the City 
Council now disposes of are protected, it is not possible for the Council to unilaterally 
amend the contractual lease terms for historic disposals, and even if such changes 
were possible with the agreement of the current long leaseholder, there would likely 
be a substantial cost.   
 
One pathway individual homeowners are able to utilise to obtain the freehold interest 
of their home is to exercise their rights under the Leasehold Reform Act 1967 (“LRA”).  
Due to greater public awareness and concerns around leasehold issues, in part 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

prompted by coverage in the national media, we have seen an increase in homeowners 
proactively seeking to purchase the freehold interest in their properties from the 
Council both to insulate themselves from onerous leasehold terms and/or obtain the 
“comfort” of owning the freehold of their property. 
 
The report considers the City Council’s disposal strategy with regards to LRA 
transactions along with recommending future arrangements for freehold transfers to 
homeowners where the City Council had previously granted a long lease to a developer 
but retained the freehold reversion.  
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
None. 

 

KEY DECISION: Yes 

 
 
1.0 Background 

 
1.1 This report seeks approval to change the City Council’s policy with regards to 

disposals under the LRA. The LRA allows applicants (a tenant or individual 
homeowner) to either acquire the freehold interest or extend their existing lease 
to secure a longer leasehold interest of their residential property. 
 

1.2 The current practice is for the City Council to transfer its freehold interest, via 
the LRA, through negotiations with individual applicants and in the process look 
to recover the Council’s full professional (surveyor’s and legal) fees.  This 
process has the potential to become costly where there is another superior 
leasehold interest(s) (e.g. the developer’s head leasehold interest) to be 
acquired (and associated costs) before the homeowner can look to purchase 
the freehold interest in the property.   
 

1.3 The City Council’s standard professional fees for sales under the LRA have 
typically been £800 (comprising £150 surveyor’s fees and £650 Legal fees).  In 
the majority of cases, in comparison to the cost of the interest being acquired, 
the level of professional fees are often perceived to be disproportionate or even 
excessive. 

 
2.0 Leasehold Reform Act 1967 Provisions 

2.1 Currently homeowners can purchase the freehold interest in their property 

(enfranchisement) under the LRA. This includes individual homeowners having 

the right to acquire all intermediate leases up to and including the freehold, 

provided that certain criteria which are set out in the LRA are met.  The valuation 

methodology for each of the interests is also laid out in the LRA and is relatively 

straightforward.  An amendment to the LRA which was made in 1993 entitles 

Page 2



 3 

the owner of the freehold and/ or any intermediate leasehold interest to recover 

its reasonable professional fees associated with the transfer.  

3.0 Review of Current Approach 

3.1 Due to the relatively small number of applications previously received by the 

City Council, a case by case approach was adopted on a straightforward private 

treaty basis. In view of the proposals in this report cases have not progressed 

to completion have been put on hold in order to not disadvantage those 

purchasers. 

3.2 The Council’s portfolio includes circa 482 freehold interests where the Council 

has granted a lease to either a developer to construct multiple properties or 

directly to individual residential properties.  This represents 338 individual 

property transactions and 144 leases to developers.  Where a lease has been 

granted to the developer there will be multiple subleases thereafter to individual 

homeowners, all of whom could exercise the right to enfranchise (subject to 

qualification requirement). Details of the portfolio are as follows:- 

 Of the 482, 94% are at rent between £nil and £20 per annum with 

unexpired terms exceeding 200 years. 

 The total rental income per annum from the portfolio is £4,705.55, 

averaging at £9.78 per transaction. 

 Using the valuation criteria from the LRA, applied to the value of the 

ground rent average (£9.78pa) the City Council’s interest equates to an 

average capital value of £205.89 per property. 

 The current total fee payment of £800 is invariably disproportionate to 

the value of the interest being sold.  The transactional legal work is 

currently part of a contract between the City Council and the Shared 

Legal Service.   

 The fee of £650 received by the City Council is offset against the cost of 

the time charged to the City Council under the contract with the Shared 

Legal Service. 

3.3 In considering our approach to freehold sales it should also be noted that the 

City Council will have already benefitted from the receipt of full market value 

when it disposed of the land.  On residential land sales our adopted approach 

to transfer leasehold interests is primarily to ensure development is actually is 

delivered and end use restricted as opposed to creating the parameters to 

secure future windfall payment from individual owner occupiers.  

4.0 Options to change the current policy 

4.1 Whilst there are various potential permutations, we have focused on the 

following two options when reviewing the approach to disposing of Council 

interests under the LRA. 

4.2 Option 1: Continue with the current approach  

Page 3



 4 

Under this option the disposal of the Council’s interest would continue to be 

assessed in accordance with the valuation methodology set out in the LRA and 

professional fees would continue to be recovered at the current rate (£800 per 

transaction).   

4.3 Financial Impact Assessment: 

Based on the assumption of receiving circa 20 applications a year, at the 

average rent, the City Council could expect to receive an income of circa 

£16,000 per annum, comprising solely of professional fees.  

 

4.4 Option 2:  Reduced Fee Contribution of £250 

 

 Under this option we would continue to value the Council’s interest in 

accordance with the valuation methodology as set out in the LRA however 

professional fees would be capped at a more modest contribution of £250 to 

reduce the overall cost to the homeowner. This would significantly reduce the 

costs to homeowners and bring fees more in line with the nil capital value of the 

interest.  However, this charge will not cover the Council’s  professional costs 

incurred in dealing with the transaction and would reduce the legal costs 

contract offset and surveyor’s fee income, dependent on how the £250 was 

allocated. If this option were approved then it would be intended that the charge 

would be reviewed annually and periodically with the minimum increase being 

based on the annual CPI increase. 

4.5 Financial Impact Assessment 

Based on the assumption of receiving circa 20 applications a year, at the 

average rent, under this scenario the City Council could expect to receive a total 

income of £5,000 per annum, comprising £5,000 of professional fees. 

Compared to Option 1 there would be a reduction to the Council’s income of 

£11,000 per annum. 

 

5.0  Conclusion 

 

5.1 Having reviewed the portfolio, considered the national drivers for change in the 

residential leasehold sector and the Council’s own objectives to support our 

communities, we would recommend that Option 2 is adopted. 

 

5.2  The annual financial impact will be relatively modest but the approach will 

signpost the council’s clear intention to share some of the burden arising from 

historic leasehold disposals that, through the actions of a limited number of 

developers, may have inadvertently disadvantaged some of our residents. 

 

Ward Councillor Consultation: 
Not applicable. 

 

Page 4



 5 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Great 8 Priorities - Housing  

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
There are no specific equality impact matters following from the proposals contained 
in this report. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: David Green – Head of 
Regeneration 
The recommendation proposed in this report is a financial decision for the Council as 
to the foregoing of professional fees which they are legally entitled to charge and, as 
such, there are no legal comments.   

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings – 
Strategic Finance Manager x2574 
There are no costs associated with the implementation of the change in policy.  In 
terms of operating the policy, any costs associated will be covered within existing 
resources/contracts.  Any income received will be additional income to the council and 
will be used offset costs within the legal SLA. It must be noted that there is an 
opportunity cost of approx. £11k per annum when compared to potential income the 
council could receive but option 2 avoids a fairer, disproportionate charge to residents 
for the service in comparison to the value of the freehold interest. This would also mean 
a potential reduction in income for those applications currently in the system. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not 
applicable 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not 
applicable 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
Place  

Page 5



 6 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Cartwright & Alex Cox  

TEL NO: 0161 779 6074 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All Wards 

Page 6



 1 

 Part 1 ITEM NO. 

 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 
ON  

14th December 2020 

 
 
TITLE: Community Asset Transfer Policy 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:   
 
The City Mayor is recommended to:- 
 
Approve the Community Asset Transfer Policy submitted as Appendix 1. 
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Community Asset Transfer Policy (CAT) is the process where an interest in and 
/or the management of Council assets (buildings and land) can be transferred to the 
Community and Voluntary Sector (VCS). The purpose of the transfer is to support and 
develop communities within Salford and help deliver positive change.  
 
The transfer of physical assets to community groups allows the council to provide 
practical financial support in a structured way. The assets will support the delivery of 
services by a correctly constituted community group and ensure that existing assets 
are best used to support wider Council policies and the Great 8.  
 
The CAT lays out a transparent framework under which a physical asset, owned by 
the Council, can be transferred to community and how any application will be 
considered.  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:   
 

 Property Asset Strategy,  

 Strategic Asset Management Plan   

 Salford Estates Strategy. 

 
 
KEY DECISION: YES  

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3b



 2 

 
1.0 Details: 
 
1.1 Community Asset Transfer (CAT) is the term used to describe the process of 

transferring ownership or management of an asset (such as a building or land) 
from the Council to a voluntary, community or charitable organisation.  
 

1.2 The transfer can take the form of a sale, long term lease or short-term lease. 
The level of any financial support offered to the applicant in the form of reduction 
of cost compared to the market value is dependent on the level of social, 
economic, environmental benefit for the community that can be demonstrated 
 

1.3 The Council has developed a Community Asset Policy to create a framework to 
consider the transfer of an interest in and /or the management of land and 
building assets to community, charitable and voluntary groups.  

 
1.4 In addition to the CAT route the Council has a long record of supporting 

community groups via the letting of Council land and property. There are 

currently circa 100 lettings within the council portfolio which are occupied by 

community or groups that are let at a concessionary rent.  

 
1.5 The Council has the opportunity to support local communities via the control and 

ownership of their land and property assets. Control of the facilities create a 

sense of belonging and security that can bring positive impacts to the locality. 

 
1.6 The adoption of a revised CAT policy will outline the circumstances under which 

an asset can be transferred and what form the transfer will take. The policy 

provides clear measures to assess eligibility and suitability criteria for the 

transfer and future occupation of the asset. 

 
1.7 Whilst delivering benefit to the community the policy also has the potential to 

deliver cost savings to the Council where the running costs of an asset can be 

taken on by an organisation that are best placed to maximise the use of the 

asset and deliver a positive impact to the community through control of the 

asset. On occasion control of an asset is a requirement in attracting grant and 

other funding. 

 
1.8 The initial assessment of any application under the CAT policy will be 

undertaken by officers. If the application is suitable for further consideration, a 

full business plan will be assessed prior to submission for consideration by the 

Property and Regeneration Briefing. 

 
2.0  Assessment Criteria: 
 
2.1 The sustainability of the applicant organisation to meet the responsibilities 

associated with the property or land.  

 

Page 8



 3 

2.2 Whether the transfer is likely to fulfil the definition of state aid. This will include 

the need to determine whether the applicant is engaged in delivering services 

for which there is, or is likely to be, a market, and whether the assistance 

provided has the potential to distort competition in trade between member 

states of the EU. 

 
2.3 Community impact, social value and comparison to the Great Eight Priorities in 

a “Salford benefit” context, using the Salford themes, outcomes and measures. 

 
2.4 Existing and potential alternative uses for the building or land within the 

Council’s Property Asset Strategy, Strategic Asset Management plan and the 

wider Salford Estates Strategy. This will include assessment of competing 

requests for asset transfer (the council may ask several organisations to 

explore a collaborative bid for the asset). 

 

2.5 The preferred method of transfer will be by way of short-term lease or long 

term lease dependent upon the request and supporting business case.  

 

2.6 The Council is adopting a consistent way of measuring and monitoring social 

value based on the National Social Value Themes, Outcomes and Measures 

(TOMs), the assessment of CAT will adopt the council’s TOMs to ensure a 

consistent approach. Voluntary and community organisations will be asked to 

provide an update on their progress towards social value measures on an 

annual basis. 

 

3.0 Conclusion 

 

3.1 Adoption of the policy will provide a transparent framework to allow the council 

to asses existing concessionary lettings and future Community Asset Transfers 

to ensure that they are delivering best value for the community whilst utilising 

Council assets. 

 

3.2 The CAT policy will offer communities the opportunity to take control of assets 

that can deliver positive impacts.  

 

3.3 Provides support and security to groups delivering volunteering, employment 

and education opportunities. 

 

3.4 Provides opportunities for voluntary and community organisations to generate 

income and apply for external funding that is not available to the council. 

 

3.5 The ability to transfer assets can also on occasion deliver investment and 

reduce costs within the Council current estate whilst ensuing they are used to 

deliver positive uses that support the wider council priorities. 

Page 9

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/how-the-council-is-performing/our-priorities-the-great-eight
https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/
https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/


 4 

 

 

4.0 Recommendation 

 

4.1  It is recommended that the City Mayor: 

 

Approves the Community Asset Transfer Policy submitted as Appendix 1. 
 

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 

Salford 2025 Regeneration 

Creating prosperity in Salford 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

 

This policy will support the delivery of Council priorities through the empowerment of 

local Community, Charity and Voluntary Organisations. Applicants will be required to 

show the positive impact they are having within the local community and how the 

transfer of the asset will support and enhance the delivery of their 

 service for the community. 

 
 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low  

 

Each application will be considered on a case by case basis and only progressed 

where a clear benefit to the local community and to the City Council has been 

demonstrated. 

 

Where an application is approved a full set of acceptable documents will be put in place 

by the Council’s legal advisers prior to the transfer of any assets to the prospective 

tenant following completion of a suitable due diligence exercise. 

 

The agreement would include the provision for the asset to return to council control 

should the group who takes control of the asset fail or be unable to deliver the business 

plan that supported the transfer. 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Shared Legal Service  

 

Page 10



 5 

Legal Services has previously provided comments and feedback on the draft 

Community Asset Transfer (CAT) Policy which have been incorporated into the 

appended policy document. 

 

The purpose of the policy is to set a clear, transparent, positive and proactive 
framework to set the context for which asset transfer from Salford City Council to the 
third sector will be considered. To achieve this the policy sets out how community asset 
transfer supports Council and its wider community objectives. 
 

The general legal implications associated with CAT’s are outlined in the body of the 
report, however such implications are relatively limited as every proposed CAT will 
have to be considered on an individual basis. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Alex Archer, Finance Manager 0161 778 

0498 

 

The proposed policy poses a risk to the council as it has the potential to reduce the 

revenue income from the property estate or loss off capital asset value from the 

property estate. 

 

The financial implications will be reviewed on a case by case basis and will be reported 

to the board as part of any application for a Community Asset Transfer. 

 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no procurement implications relating to the terms of this lease. 
 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no HR implications arising from this proposal. 
 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: James Kington  TEL NO: 07855 146 516 

 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Asset 
Transfer Policy 

November 2020 

2020 

Page 13

http://wordpress.redirectingat.com/?id=725X1342&xcust=8982&xs=1&isjs=1&url=https://thelowryblog.files.wordpress.com/2014/05/sos-cropped.jpg&xguid=&xuuid=2e897a7773ca55e541fc6c2474c3fc83&xsessid=&xcreo=0&xed=0&sref=https://thelowryblog.wordpress.com/2014/05/02/something-for-the-weekend-fri-2-sun-4-may-spirit-of-salford-special/&pref=https://www.google.com/search?q%3Dspirit%2Bof%2Bsalford%26safe%3Dstrict%26rls%3Dcom.microsoft:en-GB:IE-Address%26source%3Dlnms%26tbm%3Disch%26sa%3DX%26ved%3D0ahUKEwiQs6eipafjAhUbTBUIHbJkD1IQ_AUIECgB%26biw%3D1280%26bih%3D929&xtz=-60&jv=13.21.2-stackpath&bv=2.5.1


 

 
 

 
2 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

1. Introduction  

2. What is Community Asset Transfer? 

3. Purpose of the policy  

4. Maximising social value 

5. Eligibility criteria  

6. Assessment Process  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



 

 
 

 
3 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

 

 

 

Introduction 

 

The Council recognises that sometimes local people and community organisations 

may be best placed to manage certain community facilities in their local area. They 

often regularly use the facilities and their local knowledge and hands-on 

management may enhance services and value. 

 
Transferring Council assets (buildings or land) by way of ‘Community Asset Transfer’ 

presents local communities with the opportunity to gain more control over the 

facilities they can access and the services they use; it can promote a sense of 

belonging and can create financial and other opportunities to create positive changes 

in their local area.  

 

Salford City Council is committed to using its physical assets to form partnerships 

with local community, voluntary and charitable organisations where there are clear 

benefits for communities and contribute towards achieving council priorities.  

 

The Council has ownership of land and buildings across the city which may have the 

potential to be owned and / or managed by the community.   

 

This updated Community Asset Transfer Policy (November 2020) outlines the 

circumstances in which communities may take a greater role in the management and 

ownership of these assets and ensure the buildings and spaces that people care 

about remain for the benefit of the community. 

 

 

What is Community Asset Transfer? 

  

Community Asset Transfer (CAT) is the term used to describe the process of 

transferring ownership or management of an assets from the Council to a voluntary, 

community or charitable organisation.  

This could either be at market rent, a reduced or nil rent. The level of deduction on 

market value applied to the CAT will be determined by the assessed social, 

economic or environmental benefits generated by the transfer and value of the asset. 

 

Page 15



 

 
 

 
4 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

 
 
 
 

Purpose of the policy 

 

Whilst acknowledging the CATs are an entirely voluntary process at the discretion of 

the Council, the Council where appropriate is seeking to enable and encourage the 

use and transfer of assets from the Council to local voluntary and community 

organisations 

The policy is consistent with the Council’s commitment to build community capacity, 

and will positively support local voluntary and community organisation to develop the 

confidence and skills needed to take on the management of an asset as required.  

This policy seeks to set out a transparent framework and method for assessing 

requests for CATs and support the City Mayor’s priorities.   

 

Maximising Social Value  

 

The Council is committed to acting in a socially responsible way by pro-actively 

considering the social, economic and environmental value in everything it does. This 

commitment is outlined in the City Council’s Social Value and Sustainability Policy.  

 

The Council recognises that CAT can generate significant social value for 

communities and is a valuable part of supporting local economies to grow and thrive.   

 

The benefits of asset transfer are potentially wide ranging, depending on the extent 

to which the asset can be used for maximum community benefit.  

 
As the council is moving towards a more consistent way of measuring and 
monitoring social value based on the national social value themes, outcomes and 
measures (TOMs), over the next 12 months the assessment of CAT will adopt the 
council’s TOMs to ensure a consistent approach. Voluntary and community 
organisations will be asked to provide an update on their progress towards social 
value measures on an annual basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/390070/social-value-and-sustainability-policy-full-version.pdf
https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/
https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/
https://socialvalueportal.com/national-toms/


 

 
 

 
5 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Benefits for communities 

 Enables local people to have more control in the design and running of 

services from which they benefit 

 Empowers communities to shape the places in which they live and work 

 Provides the opportunity for local people to develop the asset to meet 

community needs and aspirations 

 Keeps money in the local economy through enterprise and locally owned 

assets and contributes to the regeneration of communities. 

 Provides opportunities for local volunteering, employment and learning new 

skills 

 Provides opportunities for voluntary and community organisations to generate 

income and apply for external funding that is not available to the council. 

 Improves community cohesion by bringing people from different backgrounds 

together to create positive changes in their local area. 

Benefits to the Council  

 Creates the opportunity for investment in assets that may not be possible in 

council ownership 

 Contributes to rationalising the council estate and focus the use of assets on 

a neighbourhood approach 

 Improves partnership working and accountability of services within 

communities 

 Helps to support and sustain local economies and build community capacity. 

Page 17



 

 
 

 
6 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

 

 

 

 

Eligibility Criteria  

 

The council will consider applications for a CAT where: 

 The applicant is a formally constituted (legal entity) voluntary, community 

organisation and/or charity, that can clearly demonstrate that it has the skills 

and capacity and governance to own and/ or manage (and sustain) the asset 

and legal responsibilities associated with that ownership and management. 

 The applicant exists for community/social/environment/economic local benefit. 

 A not for profit organisation 

 The applicant is supported by a credible business plan, which demonstrates 

the financial viability of the proposed use of the asset. The Council may wish 

to review copies of audited accounts and projections where appropriate. 

 The application clearly demonstrates how the transfer will promote or improve 

the economic, social or environmental wellbeing of the local area and 

contribute to the City Mayor’s Great Eight Priorities (using the council’s 

theme’s outcomes and measures). 

 The asset is not required to directly support the Council’s priorities or requires 

a specific organisation to manage the asset to help deliver council priorities  

 The asset does not accommodate Council fixed or core services.  

 Where an asset has a reasonable commercial or development value this will 

form part of the Councils consideration of any request made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment Process  

Page 18

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/how-the-council-is-performing/our-priorities-the-great-eight


 

 
 

 
7 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

 
The Council actively encourages applications from voluntary, community 

organisations and charities to explore options for asset transfers and can support 

such groups to develop proposals for managing such assets as required.  

 

In considering a CAT application the council will assess: 

 The sustainability of the applicant organisation to meet the responsibilities 

associated with the property or land.  

 Whether the transfer is likely to fulfil the definition of state aid. This will include 

the need to determine whether the applicant is engaged in delivering services 

for which there is, or is likely to be, a market, and whether the assistance 

provided has the potential to distort competition in trade between member 

states of the EU. 

 Impact on the community, social value and the Great Eight Priorities in a 

“Salford benefit” context, using the Salford themes, outcomes and measures 

once these are available. 

 Existing and potential alternative uses for the building or land within the 

Council’s Property Asset Strategy , Strategic Asset Management plan and the 

wider Salford Estates Strategy. This will include assessment of competing 

requests for asset transfers (the council may ask a number of organisations to 

explore a collaborative bid for the asset). 

 The proposed method of transfer which may be by way of short term lease or 

long term lease dependant on individual circumstances and requirements  

 

Following an application and an initial assessment, the Council may agree in 

principle to a CAT subject, or not, to conditions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/how-the-council-is-performing/our-priorities-the-great-eight


 

 
 

 
8 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

Transfer Process  

 

Subsequently the Council will seek to draw up a property agreement with the 

applicant organisation.  

In this agreement the Council will be looking to: 

 Establish a model for the sustainable management of the asset covering, for 

example, running costs and other liabilities associated with the asset (the 

council will seek to transfer some, or all, liabilities of running costs and the 

obligations to comply with any legal and regulatory obligations along with the 

benefits of ownership).  

 Agree arrangements for a formal annual statement from the transferee to 

confirm that the outcomes from the CAT continue to promote or improve the 

economic, social or environmental wellbeing of the local area. ( The “Salford 

benefits”) 

 Ensure the council’s long-term interests in its assets are maintained and 

protected and provide an exit route where initial commitments become 

unsustainable. The Council will retain the ability to terminate the CAT where 

the transferee fails to deliver the agreed outcomes. 

 

This agreement will reflect an arrangement for the existing and ongoing costs taking 

into account the condition of the property or land, the nature of the proposals for its 

use and the length of lease term under consideration. 

 

In some circumstances the Council may approve a trial period of occupation prior to 

the transfer. 

 

This agreement will be subject to formal Council approval.  

 

 

 

 

 

How to apply?  

 

Page 20



 

 
 

 
9 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

A voluntary or community organisation interested in applying for the transfer of a 

council asset through CAT should, in the first instance, contact the neighbourhood 

team for the relevant area. Contact can be initiated via 

https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-

local-community/ 

At the initial stage this contact will be informal and council staff will be able to advise 

groups on how to progress their application to the assessment stage. The applicant 

organisation will be provided with a condition survey of the property or land and be 

advised of all existing and reasonably foreseeable liabilities associated with it. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annex A: Legal context   

 

Page 21

https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-local-community/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-local-community/


 

 
 

 
10 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy  

Under the Local Government Act 1972 General Disposals Consent 2003 (‘the 2003 

General Consent’) the council may transfer property at less than its market value 

provided that the purpose for which the land is transferred is likely to contribute to 

the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of 

the area, provided the extent of any undervalue associated with a disposal at less 

than best consideration does not exceed £2,000,000. In assessing any applications 

for a CAT and the terms of any transfer the council will need to be consistent and 

comply with the requirements of the 2003 General Consent. 

 

However the Commission Communication on State Aid Elements in Sale of Land 

and Buildings by Public Authorities still applies. Circular 06/03: Local Government 

Act 1972 general disposal consent (England) 2003 states that “When disposing of 

land at less than best consideration authorities are providing a subsidy to the owner, 

developer and/or the occupier of the land and property, depending on the nature of 

the development.  

 

Where this occurs authorities must ensure that the nature and amount of subsidy 

complies with the State aid rules, particularly if there is no element of competition in 

the sale process. Failure to comply with the rules means that the aid is unlawful, and 

may result in the benefit being recovered with interest from the recipient”. 

 

The State Aid Rules recognise, however, that not all public sector assistance is 

“State Aid”, and also that there are circumstances under which awards of State Aid 

should be permitted - where it will have a minimal impact on competition, and/or 

where it is key to economic and social development. They do not, therefore, 

represent a blanket ban on public sector assistance, nor asset transfer at discounted 

value, and may not impact at all on certain community asset transfers. The individual 

circumstances of a proposed asset transfer should be considered before any 

judgement can be made regarding the potential impact of the State Aid Rules. 

 
The 2011 Locality Act created the concept of “Assets of Community Value” and 

placed a number of requirements on Council’s in regard to these assets. This 

legislation does not restrict the council’s options when it considers whether to 

undertake a CAT of its property, but can cause some operational complexities. 

This is commonly called the “Community Right to Bid” – but is a different process to 

CAT. Please refer to the Community Right to Bid guidance here.  

Page 22

https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/list-of-assets-of-community-value


 

 

 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 
 
 
 

TO:  THE PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 
FOR DECISION ON: 14th December 2020 

 
 
SUBJECT: Application to list The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles as an 
Asset of Community Value pursuant to Part 5, Chapter 3 of the Localism Act 2011 and the 
Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That The Unicorn Public House is not an Asset of Community Value and should be included 
on the list of land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations for a period of five 
years.  
 
 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT: 
 
In October 2020 the Council received a nomination from:- 
 
The nomination is made by ‘Save & Reopen! The Unicorn Pub’ and was accepted as valid on 
4th October 2020.  The nomination forms one application: 
 

 20/76193/ACV – Community Group (Save & Reopen! The Unicorn Pub) – received 
on 4th October 2020 

 
The purpose of this report is for the City Mayor to determine whether The Unicorn Public 
House is land of community value.  
 
If the decision is made that The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles is not land 
of community value to instruct Salford City Council and the Shared Legal Service to: 

a) Provide written reasons for the decision to the applicant. 
b) Include The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles in the City Council’s 

list of land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations for a period of five 
years from the date of entry on the register. 

 
If the City Mayor decides that the site is land of community value, to instruct Salford City 
Council and the Shared Legal Service to: 

a) Include the listing of The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles in the 
City Council’s List of Assets of Community Value. 

b) Enter a restriction on the title in accordance with the Land Registration Rules 2003 as 
amended by the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012. 

c) Include the listing of The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles in the 
Local Land Charges Register. 
 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 3c



 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
(Available for public inspection) 
 
Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”) 
 
Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012  
 
Community Right to Bid: Non-statutory advice note for Local Authorities 

 
 
KEY DECISION:  No 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 

Part 5 Chapter 3 of the Localism Act, and the Assets of Community Value (England) 
Regulations, which together deliver the “Community Right to Bid”, aim to encourage 
communities to become more active in joining together to save and take over assets which 
are significant to them. The scheme gives communities the opportunity to identify assets of 
community value and have them listed on a List of Assets of Community Value that every 
council is required to maintain. 

 
The council has a requirement to consider each application to have an asset listed against 
criteria set out in the legislation. 
 
The criteria are essentially; 

a) The application comes from a Qualifying Group (as defined in the Act). 
b) That the asset to which the application refers has in the recent past a principle use 

which furthers the communities’ social wellbeing or social interests. 
c) The asset is realistically likely to further the communities’ social wellbeing or social 

interests in the future. 
 
Further detail of the definitions and application of these criteria is set out below. 
 
The impact of an asset being listed as an Asset of Community Value (ACV) is that, if it is put 
out for disposal whilst on the list, there are certain restrictions which may affect when and to 
whom the owner may dispose of it. 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF THIS APPLICATION  
 
2.1 Site details 
 
This application relates to The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles.  The site 
extends to approximately 3197.4m² and is situated to the south of Liverpool Road on the Peel 
Green Road junction.  Vehicular access to the site is currently taken from Liverpool Road.  
The site accommodates a public house and car parking area. The area is primarily 
characterised by residential properties with a peppering of commercial properties to the north 
and east.  Eccles Police Station is situated to the north.   
 

Page 24



 

 

 

Site owner/interested parties 
 
Owner:  
 
The Wellington Pub Company 
 
Millbank Tower, 
21-24 Millbank 
Westminister,  
London,  
SW1P 4QP 
 
2.2 Community Nomination 
 
Application 20/76193/ACV is supported by a document entitled: ‘Community Right to Bid 
Nomination Form’ as well as a document providing signatures from 25 individuals. The 
application was submitted by an un-incorporated body within the meaning of Regulations 4 
and 5 of the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012. Therefore, the 
application constitutes a valid community nomination.  The applicants have also confirmed 
that the group does not distribute any surplus it makes to its members.   
 

2.3 The Procedure and Comments on the Nomination 

 

The owner of the site is The Wellington Pub Company. A notification letter was sent on 22nd 
October 2020 to advise the owner of the submitted ACV application.  
 
On 26th November 2020 a copy of a draft report was sent to the Shared Legal Service, Salford 
City Council finance team and Ward Councillors to ask for any comments they may have. 
 
2.4 The Use and Future Use of the Property 
 
The Unicorn Public House ceased to trade in July 2019 and has not been open to the 
community since.  Therefore, the nomination can not qualify as an ACV under s.88(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011.  However, the Local Authority can go on to consider whether it qualifies 
under s.88(2).   
 
“Furthering Social Wellbeing or Social Interests”; 
 
Section 88 (2)(a) of the Localism Act 2011 requires that the land in the opinion of the Authority, 
‘there is a time in the recent past when an actual use of the building or other land that was 
not an ancillary use furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local community’.  The 
Localism Act provides that ‘social interests’ include (in particular) each of the following: 
cultural interests; recreational interests and sporting interests. However, the list is not 
exhaustive and the terms should be considered broadly.  
 
There is no statutory definition of "local community" nor any guidance as to how it is to be 
determined. In an appeal concerning allotments it was concluded that "there is nothing in the 
2011 Act which suggests that a facility has to be equally valuable or equally accessible to all 
sectors of the local community.” CAMRA consider the definition to be "a group of people living 
in the same place or having a particular characteristic" and have argued that it is enough that 
a pub has regulars, even if they do not live nearby.  A judge considering a case in 2017 

Page 25



 

 

 

determined that it would be inappropriate to restrict "local community" only to residents as 
such a restriction on the interpretation of the term had not been clearly expressed by 
Parliament in the legislation. 
 
When considering the matters of social wellbeing and social interest, the legislation does not 
refer specifically to groups or organised events/participation.  Therefore, it is not necessary 
for there to be use of the property by specific/named community groups.  Furthermore, the 
nomination in itself is a factor to be taken into account as it signals that the importance and 
function of the asset to the community.  The document entitled ‘Supporting Information for 
Nomination: Unicorn Public House’ outlines that the property provided a place for 
‘…community sports teams that would meet up…’.  However, the supporting evidence does 
not list the names of these teams or frequency the groups used the property.  
 
A pub providing a place for the “community” to meet and socialise has been held sufficient 
previously to consider that the first limb of the test has been met.  The Landowner (Wellington 
Pub Company) has outlined that due to the pub’s location, it mainly attracted transient 
clientele.  The Wellington Pub Company have stated that ‘as a result of this lack of regular 
custom … the Unicorn became unviable.’.  However, it is not unreasonable to assume that 
there was an element of regular trade/community use regardless of whether this brought 
about sufficient profit to sustain the use.  Given that the mere ability/opportunity for people to 
interact and socialise with one another in the pub provides ‘social wellbeing’, this limb of the 
test is considered to be met.   
 
“Future Use”; 
 
Section 88 (2)(b) of the Localism Act requires Local Authorities to consider whether it is 
realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there could be non-ancillary 
use of the building or other land that would further (whether or not in the same way as before) 
the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.  However, there is no 
requirement under this limb of the test to determine a likely future use of the relevant 
building/land, but rather what is needed is to determine whether future community use is one 
of a number of realistic options for it.  Some cases have explained it as whether it is “fanciful” 
to think that the site could be used for a community purpose in the next 5 years. 
 
The supporting information submitted with the nomination is heavily weighted to establishing 
that the pub could be a realistic prospect to provide a future use.  However, whether the 
community use is a realistic option is uncertain; particularly where a planning application is 
likely to be recommended for approval.  It has been held that such circumstances may give 
rise to a view that it is not realistic to think the land/building could be used again for community 
purposes.  Furthermore, the ability for the community to find the necessary financial resource 
to buy the property/land (that would increase in value with planning permission), refurbish it, 
which would be required due to the damage done by squatters last year, and run the site as 
a community enterprise could be economically challenging. 
 
Wellington Pub Company were invited to comment on the nomination as the landowner.  In 
their opinion ‘there is no realistic prospect of this building being of community benefit in the 
future. It is simply not viable to bring it back into use and there are already too many competing 
pubs in the area.’  In view of this, the landowner has submitted a planning application 
(20/75811/FUL) seeking permission for the erection of 16 new dwellings and modification of 
existing accesses.    The landowner has outlined that they do not intend to sell the site but 
would develop and manage the properties themselves. 

Page 26



 

 

 

 
The landowner’s business model is to generate and increase sustainable income by 
developing their own sites for housing/apartments and renting/managing the homes once 
constructed.  Currently Wellington have 45 houses/apartments that are privately rented and 
managed directly by them.  In addition to this and the current planning application, they have 
78 houses/apartments (over 12 schemes) going through the planning process at the moment.   
 
Case law has established that the landowner’s intentions for a site is an important factor when 
weighing whether future community uses are unrealistic.  A football stadium was removed 
from the ACV list in Kettering because, although planning permission for the redevelopment 
of the stadium for residential purposes had not been granted, it was likely that the owner 
would not allow any “dealing with the site” (sale of it) which would prejudice the grant of 
planning permission.  With this in mind, considering the landowner has outlined that they do 
not intend to dispose of the site (even after developing it for housing) and that the planning 
application is likely to be recommended for approval, future community use is considered 
unrealistic.  Therefore, the nomination fails the second limb of the test.   
 
2.5 Conclusion 
 
The nomination has to meet all three of the criteria set out in the Introduction to this report for 
the asset to be considered one of community value.  As set out above, the application is not 
considered to meet criteria c).  Therefore, the council does not accept that The Unicorn Public 
House is an Asset of Community Value. 
 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS OF NOT LISTING 
 
If the Council accepts that the land is not of community value (as concluded above) then the 
authority must include The Unicorn Public House, 539 Liverpool Road, Eccles in the City 
Council’s list of land nominated by unsuccessful community nominations.  In addition, written 
reasons for the decision must be provided to the nominee.   
 
If the Council disagrees with the recommendation and considers that the land should be listed 
as an asset of community value, reasons for that decision will need to be recorded.  The 
owner would have a right to request a review of the decision. 
 
 
4. CONSULTATION / REPRESENTATION  
 
A petition calling to ‘save The Unicorn pub from demolition’, signed by 177 people, has been 
submitted to support the nomination.  Unfortunately, the petition does not specifically call for 
the asset to be listed as an ACV. 
 

Councillor Comments: 
 
Ward Councillors and those of the neighbouring ward have been consulted on the application.  
 
Councillor Mullen 

There being sufficient public houses in the area (with food and without) and on the 
evidence of constituent’s contacts, I would not be supporting the application. 
 

Page 27



 

 

 

I cannot see how a community run public house would add value to Barton.  I have heard, 
but not confirmed that it would be a microbrewery?? While that may have interest, I am 
not convinced that it would be a sustainable business model.  (I also foresee future 
negative issue on smells and deliveries.) 
 
The local publicans tell me how hard it is to survive in today’s climate. Traditional pubs 
thus are under threat.  I would put effort into supporting those.  

 
Councillor D Jolly 

No response has been received to date 
 
Councillor Barnes 

No response has been received to date 
 
Councillor Boshell 

No response has been received to date 
 
Councillor Lancaster 

No response has been received to date 
 
Councillor Morris 

No response has been received to date 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS supplied by Robert Irvine, Solicitor, Shared Legal Service are 
discussed throughout the body of the report. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS supplied by Alex Archer of Salford City Council 
 
No financial implications. 
 
 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Jade Corcoran TEL. NO. 0161 7794881 
 
 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Barton  
 
 

 

Page 28



   Part 1   ITEM NO.   
   
   

 
 

REPORT OF: 
THE DIRECTOR OF PLACE 

 
 

TO THE CITY MAYORS PROPERTY AND REGENERATION MEETING 
14th DECEMBER 2020 

 

 
 

TITLE:  SELF-BUILD RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS CASE   

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
The City Mayor is recommended to:   
  
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
  
1  
  

Note and approve the amended business case in relation to the 129 units at 
Brassington Avenue and Ryall Avenue in Ordsall, Clifton Green in Pendlebury 
and Kara Street in Langworthy and approve the appointment of G and J 
Seddon Ltd and associated project costs to undertake the delivery 
of 104 units  within the financial envelope included in the detailed business 
case.    
 
 

2  Rescind an earlier allocation of land for the future expansion of the Primrose 
Hill Primary School expansion proposal on part of the Ryall Avenue site on 
the basis that an alternative expansion space can now be provided.   
  

3  Note and approve the business case in relation to the delivery of 66 units at 
the Former St Lukes Primary School on Eccles New Rd, Weaste and 45 units 
at the former Irwell Valley High School in Kersal and approve the appointment 
of G and J Seddon Ltd and associated project costs to undertake the delivery 
of the 111 units within the financial envelope included in the detailed business 
case.    
  

4  Note and approve, in principle, the business case in relation to 177 units 
at Longshaw Drive in Little Hulton. Approval to proceed will be sought once a 
contractor partner is in place.   
  

5  Note the intention to procure a contractor partner to deliver 
the Longshaw Drive project and approve that measures are taken to do so 
through the Homes England Framework Northwest via a mini competition.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 4a



  
6  Provide guidance as to whether, in-principle, the City Council is willing to 

consider lending monies to the two community led organisations in respect of 
their elements of the St Lukes, Kara Street and Irwell Valley projects   
  

7  Note that short term development finance for the projects will be secured 
through the council’s existing Treasury Management processes.   
  

8  Note that the likely most advantageous form of borrowing is from the private 
financial markets and that the Chief Finance Officer will explore options and 
provide advice on the most appropriate borrowing facilities and arrangements 
that will allow the delivery of the 417 units detailed in the report.   
  
  

9  That the Chief Finance Officer explores the opportunity to facilitate additional 
borrowing, as may be required, to assist with the delivery of the City Mayor’s 
future ambitions in relation to the delivery of additional affordable across the 
City as set out in the Part 2 report  
 

10  Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to explore, with the Greater Manchester 
Pension Fund, the opportunity to secure potential additional benefits arising 
out of this proposal. Such opportunities to be the subject of a separate report 
for City Mayoral consideration   
  

11  Note the updated Affordable Housing delivery ambition information presented 
within the accompanying Part 2 report and provide guidance on the proposed 
way forward.   
  

12  Instruct the City Solicitor to progress the implementation of the remaining 
actions as set out within the “New Derive” report to Cabinet on the 
25th August, as summarised within this report.   
  

13  Note how the development of these sites is linked to the Derive proposals 
and the practical actions that will happen to move units from SCC to Derive 
and associated timings.   
  

14  Note and support the proposal to establish a member led Steering Board to 
oversee the delivery of all activities and recommendations as set out within 
this report   

  
15 Note the intention to procure an Employer’s Agent and Project Manager in 

accordance with the council’s governance procedures, to support the 
development and delivery of the 215 units across 5 sites through to 
completion of construction, with the Strategic Director or City Mayor to 
approve the award depending on contract value. 

   
   
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
   

Page 30



Following the report to Cabinet Briefing on the 11th August 2020, significant additional 
work has been carried out to the business case and affordable housing delivery 
ambition reports presented at that time. This report updates on the work undertaken 
and makes a number of recommendations for the City Mayor’s consideration.   
   
Detailed work has continued in respect of the proposed Council self-build sites 
at Longshaw Drive (Little Hulton), St Luke’s (Weaste) and Lower Irwell Valley School 
(Charlestown). An indicative business case is presented within the accompanying part 
two report for the sites along with a progress statement on work completed to date 
and remaining work required. The total number of new units is now 288. Whilst there 
are some matters still to be resolved, officers consider that enough progress on the 
business case has now been made to give the City Council the confidence to proceed 
to review the funding options available and make the necessary arrangements to 
prepare to take the development forward including the appointment of G and J Seddon 
to deliver the St Luke’s and Lower Irwell Valley developments.    
   
The accompanying part two report also presents an updated business case and 
outlines progress being made to deliver social rented properties in Ordsall, Pendlebury 
and Langworthy and explains the increase in proposed unit numbers from 101 to 129 
on these sites.  Whilst formal confirmation of grant for the additional 28 units from 
Home England is awaited, the report recommends the appointment of G and J Seddon 
Ltd for all but the Kara Street units, so that a start on site can be made early in 2021 
thereby allowing homes to be delivered at the earliest possible opportunity to meet 
Homes England grant funding requirements.    
   
The report recommends that a previous decision to allocate part of the Ryall Avenue 
site for the future expansion of Primrose Primary school is now rescinded on the basis 
that a replacement expansion facility can be provided elsewhere.   
   
The report explains the need to select a new contractor partner on the Longshaw Drive 
site and seeks the necessary approvals to commence the necessary procurement 
process.    
   
The report recommends that the Chief Finance Officer is authorised to explore the 
available options and advise on the most appropriate borrowing facilities and 
arrangements to enable the delivery of the 417 units detailed in the report and to 
further explore the opportunity to facilitate additional borrowing, as may be required, 
to help deliver the City Mayor’s future ambitions for additional affordable housing 
across the City as set out within the Part 2 report. 
   
The report seeks a view as to whether the Council would be willing to extend its 
borrowing to provide a loan to the two community led organisations who we are 
working with,  to give them access to more favourable interest rates than might be 
available to them directly.     
   
The report also recommends that approval is given for the Chief Finance Officer to 
discuss the opportunity to secure some added value for the Council from the projects 
through the Greater Manchester Property Fund.   
   

Page 31



The report outlines other funding sources that officers are pursuing to improve the 
financial viability of the schemes and to maximise the funding available to deliver 
additional homes in the city.   
   
The report recommends that given the progress with the schemes as reported and 
associated viability the City Mayor now approves the outstanding actions necessary 
to deliver the proposed new Derive structure in full that was reported to Cabinet on 
25th August 2020.   
   
The report outlines the practical arrangements necessary to ensure that new 
properties will be owned by Derive prior to first occupation.    
   
Finally, the report recommends that the City Mayor establish a member led steering 
group to oversee all aspects of the delivery of the programme, including the transition 
of the units from the City Council to Derive    

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: PART 2 REPORTS TO CABINET BRIEFING ON 
11TH AUGUST AND CABINET ON 25th AUGUST 2020  

 
 
KEY DECISION:  Yes 
 
ON FORWARD LOOK:   Yes  

 
 
   

DETAILS:   
   
1  Context   
1.1  The report to Cabinet Briefing on 11th August outlined progress with regard to 

the delivery of proposed new Council Self- build units on the Longshaw Drive 
(Little Hulton) Former St Lukes Primary school (Weaste) and Former Lower 
Irwell Valley School (Charlestown) and the associated business case to 
support the approval of such works.   
  

1.2  The report outlined that the proposals were, at that time, not considered 
financially viable with more work being needed to bring them within an 
acceptable financial viability envelope for consideration by the City Mayor and 
members.   
  

1.3  The report set out the detail of the proposals, the financial basis on which the 
business case has been assessed, the viability gap at that time and identified 
areas that could be considered to bring the project back within an acceptable 
financial viability envelope.   
  

1.4  The report highlighted key areas for attention and raised questions about the 
output standards required by the Council that had informed the brief in the 
areas of climate change mitigation, diversity of tenure and accessibility.   
  

Page 32



1.5  The report detailed officer actions in checking the approach being taken against 
best practice through discussion with registered providers and Developers 
specialising in the delivery of affordable housing for Registered Providers.   
  

1.6  The report identified other issues that may impact on the viability of the 
proposals that would need to be addressed including abnormal costs on the 
Irwell Valley and St Luke’s sites and the section 106 planning obligations that 
may be required if full payments were to be required   
  

1.7  The report outlined that based on discussions with local RP’s with experience 
of such projects, officers were confident that given more time and work that the 
projects can be brought within an acceptable viability envelope.   
  

1.8  The report outlined actions that would now be taken to explore opportunities to 
bring the proposals back within a financial viability and affordability envelope 
including:    
    

   Review the financial modelling of the scheme.  

 Optimise construction costs for the required existing specification in 
conjunction with our construction partners Wates and G and J Seddon 
and other parties as necessary  

 Review opportunities to amend specification to reduce costs (e.g. 
possible reduction in sizes/ low carbon approach)   

 Review grant rate assumptions and seek increased grant from Homes 
England reflecting the specification proposed linked to climate change 
objectives  

 Review proposed tenure mix through a cost v sales/ letting analysis  

 Review cost/rental income assumptions for long term management of 
retained units by Derive  

 Re-tendering of the construction works as required  
 

 
1.9  Members noted progress and instructed officers to proceed with 

the recommended actions and to seek to report back updated and amended 
proposals for members consideration at the earliest opportunity.  
  

    
2  Current position – scheme details   

  
2.1  Ordsall/Pendlebury and Langworthy proposals    

  
2.1.1  Whilst the August 11th Cabinet briefing report did not consider the previously 

approved 101 units on the Clifton Green (Pendlebury), Brassington 
Avenue/Ryall Avenue (Ordsall) and Kara Street (Langworthy) sites, it is now 
appropriate to do so for a number of reasons.   
  

Page 33



2.1.2  Following the development of detailed proposals for these sites it will now be 
possible to secure 129 Units on the sites and planning consent for that number 
of units has now been secured.   
  

Site   No. of 
units   

Type   

      Houses    Apartments   

            

Clifton Green   51         

1 bed         27   

2 bed         20   

3 bed      2      

4 bed      2      

            

Brassington   12         

2 bed      5      

3 bed      7      

            

Ryall Avenue   41         

1 bed         14   

2 bed      4   21   

3 bed      2      

            

Lang (Kara 
St)   

25         

1 bed         17   

2 bed      4      

3 bed      4      

            

            

Total   129   30   99   

  

2.1.3  It is now intended to secure more units and with a higher specification of unit 
at Kara Street where the Council is acquiring 25 units.  

2.1.4  The original costs assumptions made in the bid to, and approved by Homes 
England in 2019, were based on a lower specification of property to the fabric 
first low carbon/low energy units now proposed on the proposed self- build 
units.   
  

2.1.5  It was originally intended that the units would be delivered by, and held under, 
the Council’s Housing Revenue Account. That is not now the case with the 
intention for the properties to be acquired by Derive. 
   

2.1.6  The additional 28 units will require grant funding support from Homes England. 
Whilst an application has been made and the proposals are informally 
supported by Homes England, a formal decision to approve the award of grant 
has not yet been made.   

Page 34



  
2.1.7  The schemes at Ordsall and Clifton Green have now been costed, in detail, by 

G and J Seddon who were the contractor selected through a procurement 
exercise in July 2020 to deliver these schemes. This allows a more detailed 
business case to be presented than has been the case previously.     
  

2.1.8  All 129 units will provide homes for social rent.    
  

2.1.9  Part of the Ryall Avenue site is currently allocated for the potential expansion 
of the adjacent Primrose Hill Primary school. It is recommended that this 
allocation is now rescinded and that the future expansion of Primrose Hill is 
accommodated through a proposal to secure expansion land from the RC 
Diocese. An indicative plan of the proposals is as shown on Appendix 1 the 
detail of which will be the subject of a separate report when details are 
finalised.   
  

2.1.10  This scheme has been prioritised over the other schemes detailed in this report 
due to the existing Homes England Funding allocation and the required delivery 
timescales associated with that funding.   
  

2.1.11  City Mayor is asked to note that discussions are taking place with GMCA with 
a view to securing Brownfield land funding to assist with the delivery of these 
units. It should be noted however that the business case presented in the 
accompanying part 2 report does not include such funding on the basis that it 
has not yet been secured   
  

2.1.12  Based on the full information presented in the Part 2 report, the report 
recommends the appointment of G and J Seddon Ltd and associated project 
costs to undertake the delivery of 104 unit’s  within the financial envelope 
included in the detailed business case as set out in the Part 2 report. 
The reduction in 25 units from 129 to 104 reflects the units to be built by Salix 
at Kara Street. 
 
 

2.2  St Luke’s and Irwell Valley  
   

2.2.1  The development of the St Luke’s (Weaste) site provides the opportunity to 
deliver a mixed tenure scheme comprising 66 units. Of the 66 units it is 
intended around 24 will be taken by Inspiring Communities Housing (ICH) on 
completion.  
  

2.2.2  The development of the Former Irwell Valley school (Charlestown) site 
provides the opportunity to deliver 45 units, all of which it is proposed will be 
taken by the Broughton Trust (BT) on completion.   
  
 
 
 
 
   

Page 35



2 Sites 
- Seddons       Type   

Site   
Nr of 

Units   Houses   Apart   

                

St Lukes   66  44   24   

1 Bed           14   

2 Bed       16   10   

3 Bed       22       

4 Bed       6       

                

Irwell Valley   45   21   24   

1 Bed           16   

2 Bed       11   8   

3 Bed       4       

4 Bed       6       

                

Overall Total   111   65   48   

  
  

2.2.3  For ICH and BT to take the units on completion they will both need to have 
been confirmed as a Registered Social Housing Landlord (RSL). Both 
organisations are currently going through the process of becoming registered. 
If for some reason they cannot achieve RSL status or if the transfer cannot 
happen for any other reason the properties will remain with the City Council.   
  

2.2.4  As part of their management of the units, ICH and BT will enter into a local 
lettings policy with the Council which is to be agreed prior to ownership being 
taken.   
  

2.2.5  Work to progress the development of the sites has been undertaken in 
collaboration between the Council, ICH and the Broughton Trust and is the 
subject of a Memorandum of Understanding between the parties. This 
approach has been supported by Homes England and is now being promoted 
by them in relation to the delivery of similar collaboration projects outside 
Salford.   
  

2.2.6  Both sites are in the process of being transferred into Council ownership. This 
is expected to be completed early in 2021.    
  

2.2.7  The schemes have received pre-planning advice and it is anticipated that 
subject to the allocation of funding, that the schemes will be the subject of 
planning applications: in February 2021 for the St Luke’s scheme; 
and in March 2021 for the Irwell Valley scheme.   
  

Page 36



2.2.8  As with the schemes detailed in paragraph 2.1, we will work will planning 
colleagues to meet section 106 obligations on these sites, but given the high 
level of affordable units, the high specification of the scheme and the marginal 
viability position this will be challenging.   
  

2.2.9  G and J Seddon Ltd have previously been appointed as the selected contractor 
to deliver this scheme on behalf of the Council and officers have been working 
closely with them in relation to their cost estimates for delivering the two 
projects. The detailed cost estimates for the delivery of these sites is still in 
preparation, however the business case presented in the accompanying 
part two report uses the figures G and J Seddon’s have proposed in relation to 
the proposals detailed in paragraph 2.1 of this report so as to provide a good 
indication of the viability of these two projects.     
  

2.2.10  The schemes will also be the subject of a bid to Homes England for funding 
support. Homes England have, under their new affordable housing funding 
prospectus, indicated their indicative support for the project and a bid for 
funding will be made once we have received Council approval to do so. Whilst 
we hope to achieve an increased level of funding, the business case presented 
within the accompanying Part 2 report assumes that funding will be at the same 
level to that already secured on the schemes detailed in paragraph 2.1.  
Funding from Homes England will become available from 1st April 2021, if 
approved.   
  

2.2.11  Subject to the necessary approvals, linked to the resolution of 
the outstanding matters identified in this report, it is expected a start on site will 
be made in Autumn 2021 with the schemes taking around 21 months to 
complete.   
  

2.2.12  City Mayor is asked to note that it is intended to submit a phase 2 Brownfield 
land bid for the subject sites reflecting the abnormal costs on both sites 
associated with the demolition of the former St Luke’s Primary School and 
various issues associated with the Tree of Knowledge on the Irwell Valley site. 
The bid will also reflect the borderline viability of the scheme and seek a 
reasonable land value and/or developer’s return for the Council. It should be 
noted however that the business case as set out in the accompanying part 2 
report does not include this funding on the basis that it has not yet been 
secured.   
  

2.2.13  
  

The details of the sales prices and transfer arrangement between the Council 
and ICH/BT have yet to be agreed and will be the subject of a separate report 
as appropriate. As the Council will administer the Home England grant 
allocations as part of the development arrangements that will be reflected in 
the final agreement with the Trusts along with standard homes England 
requirements.   
  

2.2.14  Both ICH and BT will need to secure borrowing facilities to cover the costs of 
acquisition. Whilst both organisations are exploring opportunities for such 
borrowing, it seems unlikely that they will be able to secure monies at the same 
level that the Council can borrow. Given that the Council can, if it wishes and 

Page 37



subject to the necessary approvals, lend monies for social housing provision at 
the same rates at which it can borrow such monies, a request has been made 
by the two organisations as to whether the Council would be prepared to do 
that in this case? . At this stage an in-principle view is sought from the City 
Mayor as to whether the Council would be willing to do so and the matter is 
considered further in the financial implications within the accompanying Part 2 
report. If the Council did look to support such a request it would require 
additional borrowing which would include the 5 units that ICH will look to 
acquire from Salix on the Kara Street scheme.   
  

2.2.15  A revised business case for the proposed new units at St Luke’s and Irwell 
Valley is presented in the accompanying Part 2 report.    
The report recommends the appointment of G and J Seddon Ltd and 
associated project costs to undertake the delivery of 111 units within the 
financial envelope included in the detailed business case as set out in the Part 
2 report 
 
 
  
  

2.3  Longshaw Drive, Little Hulton  
  

2.3.1  As previously reported, officers have been working with Wates and a range of 
consultants to develop detailed proposals for the Longshaw Drive site. This 
has included Wates undertaking a range of due diligence activities on the site 
that were necessary to support a planning application for the site and the 
subsequent development of the site. A mixed-use scheme for 177 units has 
now been prepared and a planning application will be submitted once local 
members have been consulted. The schedule and tenure mix of the proposed 
177 units is as set out in the table below. More for sale properties would have 
ideally been included but this has proved challenging due to low forecast sales 
values.   
  

       Type   

Site   
Nr of 

Units   Houses   Apart   

                

Longshaw Drive   177   132   45   

1 Bed           33   

2 Bed       31   12   

3 Bed       70       

4 Bed       30       

5 Bed       1       

                

Overall Total   177   132   45   

  

Page 38



  
2.3.2  Part of the Wates’ commission approved by members at Procurement Board 

on 1st July was for Wates to provide detailed costings for the scheme 
proposals. This has proved challenging particularly in relation to the council’s 
aspirations to deliver high specification fabric first low carbon/low energy 
properties but final figures have now been received.   
  

2.3.3  Figures provided by Wates throughout their period of appointment have 
continued to increase to the point where the final submitted figures were 
significantly higher than those previously presented to members. The Wates 
submission has been subject to an internal and external Value for Money 
review. The recommendation is that it is considered possible to make 
substantial savings by undertaking a mini competition via a further procurement 
process conducted through the Homes England Framework Northwest. This 
process would mirror the successful tender process on the units that have 
recently achieved planning permission e.g. Ryall Avenue, Clifton Green and 
Brassington.  As a result the arrangements with Wates will cease once their 
current commission ends with the submission of a planning application for the 
proposed scheme.   
  
  

2.3.4  As it will take some time to secure a new contractor and associated detailed 
costings for the scheme, officers have produced a business case for 
the Longshaw Drive project on the basis of the costings provided to date by G 
and J Seddon on the scheme detailed in paragraph 2.1 of this report. Whilst 
there are some matters outstanding to enable the Longshaw Drive scheme to 
be brought forward, it is hoped that the business case presented and 
assumptions within it provide comfort that a financially viable scheme can be 
delivered and allow the recommended funding options to be explored  
  

2.3.5  As with the schemes detailed in paragraph 2.1, we will work will planning 
colleagues to meet section 106 obligations on these sites, but given the high 
level of affordable units, the high specification of the scheme and the marginal 
viability position, this will be challenging. One element that will have to be 
resolved is agreement with Sports England regarding the historic playing field 
use on the site and a way forward on this has been agreed with relevant costs 
reflected in the business case.    
  

2.3.6  The schemes will also be the subject of a bid to Homes England for funding 
support. Homes England have, under their new affordable housing funding 
prospectus, indicated their indicative support for the project and a bid for 
funding will be made. Whilst we hope to achieve an increased level of funding, 
the business case  presented in the accompanying Part 2 report assumes that 
funding will be at the same level to that already secured on the schemes 
detailed in paragraph 2.1.  Funding from Homes England will become available 
from 1st April 2021, if approved.   
  

2.3.7  Subject to the necessary approval linked to the resolution of 
the outstanding matters identified in this report it is expected a start on site will 

Page 39



be made in Autumn 2021 with the schemes taking around 21 months to 
complete.   
  

2.3.8  City Mayor is asked to note that it is intended to submit a phase 2 Brownfield 
land bid for the subject sites reflecting the very high abnormal ground cost 
issues. The bid will also reflect the borderline viability of the scheme and seek 
a reasonable land value and /or developer’s return for the Council.  It should 
be noted however that the business case presented within the Part 2 
accompanying report does not include this funding on the basis that it has not 
yet been secured.   
  

2.3.9  It is expected to take around 4 months to procure a new contractor and to 
secure detailed cost estimates for the Longshaw Drive proposals and it is 
hoped that the outstanding issues can be concluded in that time period.    
  

2.3.10  There are a number of outstanding issues to be resolved are and these are set 
out within the accompanying Part 2 report.   
  

2.3.11  A revised business case for the proposed Longshaw Drive scheme is 
presented in the accompanying Part 2 report. A further report will be presented 
regarding a contractor appointment at a later date. 
  

3  Current Position- Financial Viability   
3.1  The financial issues associated with this report will covered in the Part 2 

section of the agenda.   
  

4  Other matters for Consideration    
4.1  Derive new structure arrangements    

  
4.1.1  At the August Cabinet meeting members considered a report recommending 

the establishment of a new Derive Holdings company and associated structure 
that would help deliver the affordable Housing aspirations that the City Council 
has indicated is a priority.  
  

4.1.2  Cabinet approval was granted to proceed with the Derive RP element of that 
new structure, but the other proposals were held in abeyance until the business 
case for the self-build units at Longshaw Drive and the St Lukes/Irwell Valley 
sites had reached  a more advanced stage.  
  

4.1.3  Given the details as set out within this report and the proposals for Derive to 
acquire the 129 units at Pendlebury, Ordsall and Langworthy it is now 
proposed that the City Mayor approves the outstanding action to establish the 
proposed new Derive Group structure to be wholly owned and directed by the 
Council as detailed in the   
Housing Delivery Options –Derive Housing Group structure proposals reported 
to Cabinet on 25th August and that officers are authorised to proceed to deliver 
those new arrangements in conjunction with the already appointed, external 
solicitors, Bevan Brittan. Other actions will be required as part of this approval 
and the transfer of individual schemes to Derive and these will be reported 

Page 40



separately as required.  The accompanying Part 2 report sets out the full Derive 
Group proposals previously reported 
 
 
   
 

4.2  Derive – Practical arrangements    
4.2.1  As the intention is for the 417 units detailed in this report to be owned and 

under the control of Derive it is important that steps are taken to ensure such 
an objective can be delivered.    
  

4.2.2  As Derive does not currently have RP status it is necessary for all the 417 
units as detailed in this report to be delivered by the Council. That allows the 
Council with its RP status to secure Homes England funding   
  

4.2.3  Once units are completed, they will need to be transferred to Derive 
ownership before they are occupied. That will require Derive RP to be 
established by that time and steps are being taken to ensure that is the 
case.   
  

4.2.4  Officers are working with shared service legal colleagues and external legal 
advisors to ensure that the subject lands are held appropriately at all stages 
of the development and sale process to make sure that the Councils 
objectives can be achieved.   
  

4.2.5  Once Derive RP is established, this will open up the option for Derive 
Holdings to acquire land from the Council and self-deliver developments using 
its Derive Development Company.   

4.2.6  Lending arrangements between the Council and the existing Derive Company 
are already in place but will need to be reviewed once Derive Holdings and 
the associated companies are established. Whilst the Council will be able to 
lend monies to Derive to deliver affordable housing development at the same 
interest rates the Council is paying, a higher percentage charge will need to 
be charged for any non-affordable housing.    
  

4.2.7  The Derive Holdings arrangements have been set up to be as tax efficient as 
possible, to ensure the maximum investment can be made 
in affordable housing, meaning that SDLT will be avoided on the sale of 
properties and land by the Council to Derive.   
  

4.3  Steering Board proposals   
  

4.3.1  The proposals and recommendations as set out within this report are 
significant both in terms of financial scale and their practical impact in 
providing more affordable housing within the City. The impact is significantly 
greater when taken together with the emerging proposals and opportunities 
as set out within Appendix 2 within the accompanying Part 2 report.  
  

Page 41



4.3.2  Whilst such a programme would need to be phased over an appropriate 
time period, it will also require considerable scrutiny, direction, planning 
resource allocation by both the Council and Derive.   
  

4.3.3  The delivery of the 417 units proposed within this report provides the 
opportunity to establish a member led steering group to oversee all aspects of 
the delivery of the 417 units and also to start to consider and put in place the 
necessary arrangements for an extended programme of delivery moving 
forwards.   
  
It is suggested that the group should be Chaired and led by two Senior 
elected members ,a Senior nominated Council officer to champion the project 
along with officers forming the existing Housing delivery working group 
(representing Housing, Property and Finance), along with Legal support and 
other representation as required.    
  

4.3.4  If the steering group proposal is agreed it is recommended it should provide 
bi-monthly progress reports to the City Mayor (or more frequently as 
required).   
              
  

5  Financial Summary   
  

5.1  The current business case proposal is based on the delivery of a total 
417 properties across 7 sites, with a mixed tenure of market sale, market rent 
(PRS), social and affordable rents. It is the intention that 69 of the properties 
will be delivered for third party registered provider organisations, with the 
balance of rented units being retained by the council within its Housing 
Company Derive.   
  

  The development of 6 of the sites will be carried out by the council which will 
require short term development finance during the construction period which it 
is intended will be repaid via a combination of receipts from market sales, sale 
to third party RP’s and reimbursement from Derive on transfer of retained units 
to the company. Properties will be acquired on the seventh site (Kara Street) 
with an initial deposit payment to be made by the end of the year and balance 
on their completion.   
  

  The remaining financial summary issues associated with this report will 
covered in the Part 2 section of the agenda.   
  

6  Conclusion  
6.1  Considerable progress has been made with all the 417unit schemes since the   

report to Cabinet Briefing on 11th August 2020.   
  

6.2  Whilst some issues remain outstanding, it is now considered that with the 
information available all the schemes can be brought forward within an 
acceptable financial delivery envelope enabling the recommendations as set 
out within the accompanying Part 2 report to be progressed.    
  

Page 42



6.3  There is however much still to do and a number of further reports will be   
required to seek approval to the detailed elements of the recommendations as 
set  out within this report moving forwards.   
  

6.4  As mentioned in the assessment of risk paragraph below, there are some 
matters   
outstanding and that does present an element of risk particularly in relation to 
the confirmation of funding support and other matters as set out in the 
accompanying Part 2 report.  An alternative approach would be to wait until all 
outstanding matters have been resolved before proceeding with some, or all, 
of the recommendations as set out however that would have a significant 
impact on the ability to deliver the schemes at an early date. It will also impact 
on ability to put in place the arrangements that will help facilitate future 
affordable housing opportunities and delivery and the structures intended to 
own and manage those properties.   
  

6.5  The proposal to establish a member led Steering Group with regular reporting 
of progress to the City Mayor will provide full visibility on all aspects of the 
proposal and ensure that management of any current and future matters of risk 
will be appropriately managed and that detailed consideration can be given to 
any emerging proposals coming forward as detailed in Appendix 2 to 
this report.   

  
  
   
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:    
   

 Affordable housing provision   
 Community cohesion   
 Social Value   
 Employment generation    
 Anti-fuel poverty   

   
   
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:      
   
   
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium – The capital borrowing requirements associated 
with the delivery of the proposed 417 units is considerable, with the aspirational 
numbers for the delivery of additional affordable properties over the next 10 years 
being considerably greater. The report indicates that the business cases for the 417 
unit projects will provide a positive financial outcome on the assumptions included 
within those business cases, There are however a number of matters that need to be 
resolved before all projects can be considered to be without risk and these are set out 
within the report.    
An alternative approach would be to wait until all outstanding matters have 
been resolved before proceeding with some, or all, of the recommendations as set 
out however that would have a significant impact on the ability to deliver the 
schemes  at an early date. It will also impact on ability to put in place the arrangements 

Page 43



that will help facilitate future affordable housing opportunities and delivery and the 
structures intended to own and manage those properties.             
The recommendation to establish a member led steering group with regular reporting 
on progress and issues to the City Mayor will assist with the management of any 
current and future risks.   
   
   
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: David Green – Head of Regeneration (Legal)   
  
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own contractual standing orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 
reason not to do so.  In addition, the PCR requires that contracting authorities treat 
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent 
manner, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge.  
  
The report sets out the council's intention to proceed with the procurement process 
through the Homes England Framework North West. In following the necessary 
procedures, any potential challenge to the award of a contract to a provider from 
aggrieved provider will be significantly reduced, assuming always that the tender 
exercise carried out has been an open and fair one and undertaken in accordance 
with the tender documents published to set out the procedure and process involved, 
the scoring and evaluation of bids, including any clarification issues.  
  
This will also give some comfort to the council in ensuring that value for money is being 
obtained and periodically tested with competition maintained.  
  
This report and the recommendations in it are far reaching and varied. External 
lawyers have been appointed and are acting for and advising the council in regard to 
their proposals as contained in this report and have also reviewed this report.  
  
The Shared Legal Service is happy to continue, subject to being instructed to do so, to 
facilitate the continued provision of advice through the appointed external lawyers 
and/or as appropriate the shared legal service in regard to any required legal 
advice/actions arising from the matters raised in this report.  
   
   
   
   
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Chris Mee – Strategic Finance Manager Ext 0434   
   
The financial implications of these proposals are set out within the report and outlined 
in more detail in the accompanying Part 2 report   
   
   
   
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:   Deborah Derbyshire, Category Manager ext. 
6244 

Page 44



The original agreement was to appoint Wates through the Scape Framework by direct 
award for the scheme at Longshaw Drive.  Upon completion of stage 1 pre construction 
it appeared to be too expensive to progress further to stage 2 after a full value for 
money exercise had been conducted.   
 
To continue with the scheme the Homes England Framework will be utilised for stage 
2 which is a compliant route to market and therefore conforms with the Procurement 
Contract Regulations and the Councils Contractual Standing Orders. Going forwards 
the Homes England is due to expire on 31st July 2021 therefore all procurement activity 
should be concluded before this date. 
 
If the funding is approved for the additional properties, procurement will work with the 
project lead in exploring the best route to market and utilising an appropriate 
framework to procure the other schemes. 
 
   
   
HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A   
   
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:    
The intention is for the direct delivery of homes to make a positive contribution to the 
city’s efforts in relation to climate change and low carbon.  In line with the council's 
ambitions for carbon neutral new build by 2028 and commitment for the city to be 
carbon neutral by 2038, all homes are planned to be built to achieve a low 
carbon/low energy standard, using a fabric first low carbon/low energy approach 
across all tenures helping to support policy priorities at a city and GM level for all 
new builds and ensuring on-going low energy costs for residents.   
   
At the moment there are no identified negative implications but individual projects will 
require a detailed consideration in relation to low carbon/climate change 
implications.   
   
Procurement of the contractors has included reference to social value which allows 
contractors to consider positive environmental impacts.    
   
If current proposals for the fabric first low carbon/low energy approach are scaled 
down for financial reasons, this will have future consequences around potential 
retrofitting at a later date and this will be a key consideration to take into account.   
   
   
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  Work on this report has been involved 
officers from Housing, Property, Finance and the Shared Legal Service, as well as 
Children’s Services in relation to Ryall Avenue site.   
   
   
CONTACT OFFICERS:  Peter Openshaw, Chris Mee, Les Woolhouse, Andrew Leigh, 
Kate Bouchier   
   
   
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Citywide implications. 

Page 45



 

Page 46



P

r

i
m

r

o

s

e

 
H

i
l
l

E

x

i
s

t
i
n

g

 
2

F

E

 
B

l
o

c

k

1

F

E

 
E

x

p

a

n

s

i
o

n
B

l
o

c

k

(

2

 
S

t
o

r

e

y

)

J

u

n

i
p

e

r

 
H

o

u

s

e

1

 
t
o

 
3

1

1

1

2

8

1

28.4m

6

J

E

N

N

I

N

G

S

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

1

6

3

4

2

9

2

1

2

3

2

4

P

H

O

E

B

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

3

9

3

2

1

1

9

1

0

3

3

2

1

C

U

T

T

E

R

 
C

L

O

S

E

7

2

3

8

2

8

1

1

2

L

A

S

C

A

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

1

2

2

2

0

6

2

1

7

1

B

R

A

N

D

S

B

Y

 
G

D

N

S

1

5

2

1

6

2

2

4

4

1

0

1

1

29.3m

2

3

3

5

S

T

E

R

N

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

C

R

O

W

T

H

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

8

1

2

2

1

1

7

9

1

8

3

1

 
t
o

 
3

3

1

1

8

1

0

8

 
t
o

 
1

1

6

Poplar House

1

7

8

2

2

7

8

29.6m

9

0

1

1

9

1

1

2

9

N

A

P

I
E

R

 
G

R

E

E

N

1

4

3

5

P
H

O
E

B
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A

g

a

t
e

 
M

e

w

s

3

5

 

t

o

 

5

7

3

2

3

7

2

9

9

2

 
t
o

 
1

0

6

P

H

O

E

B

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

3

8

3

1

1

0

S

T

 
J

O

S

E

P

H

'
S

 
D

R

I
V

E

2

5

2

5

7

1

9

3

5

2

7

2

6

2

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

9

3

3

2

7

LB

1

1

1

5

7

1

1

2

1

B

U

R

N

E

T

T

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

1

1

0

8

R

Y

A

L

L

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

 
S

O

U

T

H
2

0

2

3

1

5

9

1

2

9

2

9

K

N

O

W

S

L

E

Y

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

2

1

2

2

6

P

H

O

E

B

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

4

2

2

4

1

0

2

1

1

8

1

7

R

Y

A

L

L

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

4

5

1

1

3

5

T

C

B

s

2

8

1

6

L

E

D

B

R

O

O

K

E

 
C

L

O

S

E

3

6

Pond

1

P

r

i
m

a

r

y

 
S

c

h

o

o

l

1

1

R

C

 
C

h

u

r

c

h

1

5

M

A

Y

F

L

O

W

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

S

t
 
J

o

s

e

p

h

'
s

S

t
 
J

o

s

e

p

h

'
s

 
R

C

Presby

9

Potential Development

4846 m²

Proposed footpath

diversion

School Site Expansion

3222 m²

This drawing is copyright to Salford City Council. It shall not be used without permission for any
purpose. Reproduction is only permitted by prior arrangement. Do not scale from this drawing. All
discrepancies to be related back to the originator for verification prior to commencing the works.
All dimensions are in                    unless otherwise stated.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards / risks associated with the types of work detailed on this
drawing, note the following;

Construction;

Maintenance / Cleaning;

Decommissioning / Demolition;

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor working, where
appropriate, to an approved method statement.

PROJECT

DRAWING

CLIENT

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT REF. REVISION

www.salford.gov.uk

DATESCALE @ A3DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

PURPOSE OF ISSUE

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

REV DESCRIPTION DRN CHKDATE APP

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD,

SWINTON, MANCHESTER, M27 5AW.  T 0161 779 4800

Salford City Council

© Salford City Council

Salford City Council

Primrose Hill Feasibility
School Expansion to 3FE

Proposed Site Plan

PRIMROSE_BS01

B_

13/05/20201:1250LWLWDR

FEASIBILITY

MM/M

A New block moved to avoid below ground DR LW19/05/20 LW
services.

B Internal building layouts removed DR LW01/12/20 LW

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report: Self-build residential 
development business case 

 
Committee Property & Regeneration 
briefing  
Date: 14 December 2020 

 
Category of exemption applied:  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information) 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 
 
 

 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  
 
 

 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 
 

x 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

x 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

x 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 
 
 

 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 
 

 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  
 
 

 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  
 
 

 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 
  

 

 
 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

 

The report contains commercial sensitive in relation to the projects outlined and 
the Council’s intended legal arrangements with contractors, community led 
organisations and its affordable housing aspirations and funding intentions 
moving forwards. 

A Part 1 report has been reported that details all proposed recommendations to 
be considered and the supporting evidence, but information that is considered to 
be commercially sensitive has not been included. It is hoped that the Part 1 report 
will give a very clear understanding of the Council’s intentions and aspirations for 
the delivery of more affordable housing in the City by the Council 

 

 
Name and Title:  Peter Openshaw, Assistant Director Environment & Community Safety 

 
Date: 14 December 2020 

 

Page 50


	Agenda
	3a Leasehold Reform Act 1967 - Review of Disposal Practices
	3b Community Asset Transfer Policy
	03bii Appx A Community Asset Transfer Policy 2020

	3c Unicorn Public House, Barton - Asset of Community Value Application
	4a Self-Build Residential Development Business Case (see item 6(a))
	04aii Appendix 1
	Sheets and Views
	Option A - Diverted Footpath (2)



	6a Self-Build Residential Development Business Case

